
      
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
   

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBR 12, 2022 
 

RESIDENTS ARE WELCOME TO WATCH THE MEETINGS VIA FACEBOOK LIVE AT  
(https://www.facebook.com/peru.illinois) 

QUESTIONS CAN BE PRESENTED USING THE COMMENT FUNCTION OR EMAILED TO  
DBARTLEY@PERU.IL.US  

 
 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M.     
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
CITY OF PERU ITEP PRESENTATION 
 
 
MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
REGULAR MINUTES OF AUGUST 29, 2022 
 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 
CLOSED SESSION MINUTES OF 02/28/22, 03/14/22, 03/28/22, 04/11/22, 05/9/22, 06/6/22, 06/13/22 and 
07/5/22 
 
PERU POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTLY REPORT FOR AUGUST 2022 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  

      
1. FINANCE COMMITTEE     
  

DISBURSEMENTS for September 14, 2022 
 
Motion to approve reinvestment of $250,000 into a Santander Bank CD for 1 year at 3.4%.  
 

https://www.facebook.com/peru.illinois


Motion to approve reinvestment of $250,000 into a Morgan Stanley Bank CD for 4 years at 
3.6%. 
 
Motion to approve $500 sponsorship to The Perfectly Flawed Foundation Golf Outing  
 
 

2. PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
  
 Motion to approve a quote from T&R Electric for nine pad mount 167 kVA single phase 

transformers in the amount of $82,494.00 (3 Dimond Development) 
 
 Motion to approve a quote from Anixter for a recloser in the amount of $33,335.00 (GAF) 
 
 Motion to approve a quote from Anixter for a primary meter cabinet in the amount of 

$26,502.48 (GAF) 
 
 Motion to approve a quote from Anixter for 15 kV 750 MCM Copper Okonite wire in the 

amount of $138,489.00 (GAF/MVP TIF District) 
 
 Motion to approve $21,271 from Utility Equipment Company for water main materials through 

Veteran’s Park 
 

Motion to award the NE Watermain materials contract to the lowest responsible bidder 
  
 
 3. FIRE & POLICE COMMITTEE 
 

 
 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTION 
 
MINUTES OF 8/31/22 PUBLIC HEARING OF THE PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION ON PETITION OF 
CRYSTAL LOUGHRAN, EXECUTOR OF THE ESTATE OF CAROL J. PIWONSKI CONCERNING 1202 
CHAMBERS STREET AND 830 8TH STREET, PERU, ILLINOIS. 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING DIVISION OF REAL ESTATE AND WAIVER OF REQUIREMENTS OF 
SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND VARIANCES AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF CRYSTAL LOUGHRAN, 
EXECUTOR OF THE ESTATE OF CAROL J. PIWONSKI. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 – BUSINESSES OF THE CITY OF PERU CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO CREATE A NEW ARTICLE IX. – MOBILE FOOD VENDORS AND MOBILE FOOD 
VEHICLES. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 – ADMINISTRATION, ARTICLE III. - OFFICERS AND 
EMPLOYEES, DIVISION 3. – LEGAL COUNSEL, OF THE CITY OF PERU CODE OF ORDINANCES. 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH SCOTT J. 
SCHWEICKERT, ESQ. 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN ILLINOIS CASH FARM LEASE BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS, AND JOHN LAMPS (HALM FARM – 70.6 ACRES). 
 
 



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 66574 ENTITLED: AN ORDINANCE FIXING WAGES FOR 
EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS COMMENCING MAY 1, 2022 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 
2023 
 
 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
Constitution Week September 17-23, 2022 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Motion to hire selected candidate for Finance Officer 
 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ITEM NO. 1 Communication from Anthony Cielenski seeking variances for property located at 2016 12th 

Street, Peru, IL 
 
ITEM NO. 2 Communication from LaSalle-Peru High School requesting permission to hold the annual 

homecoming parade on Thursday, September 29, 2022 beginning at Rotary Park; no parking 
signs be posted around the park 

 
 
MAYOR’S NOTES 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 29, 2022 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Ken Kolowski in the Peru City 
Council Chambers on Monday, August 29, 2022, at 7:15 p.m. 

City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, 
Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo present; Mayor Kolowski present. 

All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Ms. Jessica Kreiser, Executive Director of Lighted Way Children’s Developmental Center in LaSalle 
addressed the council and provided the following: 

“All of the information I have to share today is about our students, which is why you have each been 
provided a picture along with my business card, our agency brochure, and photos of our current and 
future homes. All of the details I am about to share reflect 64 years of agency excellence in service to 
students, families and school districts across the Illinois Valley. Before you learn a little more about 
Lighted Way, I would like to have some of our current board members introduce themselves.” 

“Lighted Way Association, Inc is a 501 (c)(3), Non-profit, Non-public, Special Education School for 
students with Multiple Disabilities located in the heart of LaSalle County in the city of LaSalle and is 
accredited by the Illinois State Board of Education. Lighted Way is home to students ages 3 to 22 who are 
not able to be educated by their home school districts due to significant learning, physical, and medical 
needs. Students with Multiple Disabilities, Developmental Delays, Traumatic Brain Injuries, Autism, 
Intellectual Disabilities, and Other Health Impairments are provided an individualized education program, 
where certified school staff work together to meet students where they are and develop a specialized 
program for success. Forty-five Lighted Way students from 20 school districts are packed into a structure 
that started as a 2 story house with a detached garage. The original building was constructed in the early 
1900’s with 5 building additions added since 1963. Lighted Way is a beloved institution in the county and 
impacts the community and its citizens in many ways as our sole responsibility is to teach the most fragile 
child entrusted to us.” 

“Lighted Way students have been through a lot the last few years yet we continue to educate and grow. 
Similar to public schools, The Covid-19 Pandemic impacted our students tremendously. “At home” or 
“Remote” learning is difficult for an average student; imagine the impact on a student with significant 
needs! Weekly packets with instructional materials delivered to homes and Zoom meetings with the lack 
of face to face exposure to real life teaching and hand-over-hand guidance made learning difficult. In 
addition to regression of skills, deterioration in relationships, lack of sensory integration, and the absence 
of exposure to materials that cannot be duplicated, students have been affected greatly. Students have 
been slowly returning to their LW safe haven, while the more medically fragile continue to remain at 
home for now. Homebound students continue to receive “At Home” instruction.” 

“The financial burden of Covid is well documented: Cleaning supplies including 55 gallon drums of 
sanitizing solution, protective materials and additional supplies that needed to be purchased and 
replenished frequently. Keeping the school building properly sanitized to reduce the chance of infection 
to students and staff was labor intensive and costly. Transportation costs to continue “At Home” 
instruction for the medically fragile is an additional weekly expenditure. Lighted Way is not eligible for 
any State or Federal funding provided to public and private schools to offset these ongoing and increasing 
expenses. These costs have been dispersed through the Lighted Way budget.” 

 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 29, 2022 
   

 2 

“If you build it; they will come.” Lighted Way is excited to have purchased the 33,000 square foot, single 
story commercial property, formally known as Heritage Manor, which has been abandoned for 11 years. 
Plans have been drawn to include: larger specialized classrooms, age appropriate sensory rooms, learning 
classroom for self-care, cooking, etc, commercial kitchen, handicap accessible bathrooms and walkways, 
auxiliary classrooms for all related services (ie; OT, PT, Speech & Language,Vision, and Hearing) and a 
larger, appropriate playground.” 

“The new site will offer more jobs to residents, provide more space for individualized learning, create 
spaces for more impactful services for our most fragile and special population of students, and restore an 
abandoned facility, improving the neighborhood and the entire community. Lighted Way currently has a 
list of students waiting to be accepted so they can receive the appropriate, quality education they deserve 
without riding for many miles on a school bus out of the immediate area.” 

“Peru City Council, we look forward to working with you as we move forward making our new home a 
perfect fit for our students, staff, families, and both the LaSalle and Peru communities!” “Please let me 
know if you are interested in a tour of our current facility, I would be thrilled to share our school with 
you!” “If you have any questions I would be happy to answer them!”   

“Thank you for your time tonight and we look forward to being neighbors!” 

The Mayor and Council thanked Jessica for the important work that do. 

PRESENTATION 

MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS  

Mayor Kolowski presented the Regular Minutes of August 15, 2022; Treasurer’s Report for July 2022 
and the Peru Volunteer Ambulance Service Inc. Activity Summary for July 2022. Alderman Waldorf 
made a motion the minutes and reports be received and placed on file. Alderman Payton seconded the 
motion; motion carried.  
 
FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE  

Alderman Buffo presented the following disbursements for payment on August 31, 2022:  

FUND NAME      TOTAL EXPENSES 

General Fund                    $367,405.05 

Utility Fund                                            707,849.22  

Landfill Fund            12,391.00 

Airport Fund                          44,445.52 

Total                    $1,132,090.79 

Alderman Buffo made a motion the disbursements be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in the 
usual manner. Alderman Tieman seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen 
Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 29, 2022 
   

 3 

Alderman Payton made a motion to approve $1,000 contribution to Illinois Valley PADS. Alderman 
Tieman seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, 
Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

 
Alderman Payton made a motion to approve expenses for city officials to attend the annual IML 
Conference in Chicago September 15-17, 2022. Alderman Buffo seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley 
called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Alderman Ballard made a motion to approve the north water tower logo design. Alderman Lukosus 
seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, 
Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve the purchase of streetlight and walk light pole standards in 
the amount of $189,492.00. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with 
Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion 
carried. 
 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve quote from Pabian Enterprises LLC, in the amount of 
$29,800 for a 5-horsepower dewatering pump for detention pond behind Menards. Alderman Waldorf 
seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, 
Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve quote from Evans Electric in the amount of $29,777.00 
replacement of traffic signal cabinet and batter back up (Rt. 251 and Route 80). Alderman Waldorf 
seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, 
Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Lukosus motion to seek bids for 3 reels, 1300 ft each of 15 kV 500 MCM aluminum wire to 
replace stock. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen 
Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

POLICE AND FIRE COMMITTEE 

Alderman Edgcomb made a motion to approve service agreement with Saltus Technologies for 10-unit 
digiTICKET program with annual amount of $12,662.00. ($13,300 annual fee minus $638.00 discount if 
paid in full). LaSalle County Circuit Clerk to reimburse City $12,000. Alderman Buffo seconded the 
motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, 
Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

 
Alderman Tieman made a motion to increase parking violation fines; parking from $10.00 to $20.00; 
snow ordinance parking fines from $25.00 to $50.00. Alderman Buffo seconded the motion. Deputy 
Police Chief Sarah Raymond reported he is looking for more compliance and hopefully raising the fines 
will help. Deputy Chief Raymond also stated fines have not been raised since 2006. Mayor Kolowski 
stated raising the fines is not to take money from citizens but encourage people to follow the rules. Clerk 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus 
and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 29, 2022 
   

 4 

Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of Planning/Zoning hearing held on August 
3, 2022 regarding the petition of Michael Lock concerning property located at 400 5th Street, Suite 199, in 
the City of Peru, IL. Alderman Tieman made a motion the minutes be received, placed on file and concur 
with the recommendation. Alderman Ballard seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 6682 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110 – TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES, ARTICLE V. – 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING; DIVISION 2. – ENFORCEMENT, OF THE CITY OF 
PERU CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
Alderman Tieman made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Buffo 
seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, 
Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-08 
 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS, IN SUPPORT 
OF LIGHTED WAY ASSOCIATION, INC.’S AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) 
FUNDING APPLICATION TO LASALLE COUNTY 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Payton 
seconded the motion. Corporate Counsel noted Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, 
Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

PROCLAMATIONS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Clerk Bartley presented a communication from St. Bede requesting permission to hold a homecoming  
parade in the City of Peru on Friday, September 30th at 4:30 p.m. (Splash Pad to St. Bede). Alderman  
Waldorf made a motion the communication be received, placed on file and permission granted. Alderman  
Edgcomb seconded the motion; motion carried. 

MAYOR’S NOTES 

PSM/Fire Chief Jeff King reported on the upcoming retirements of Firefighter Engineer Dennis Lemmer 
(42 years) and Electric Department Foreman Kye Kaszynski. 

Human Resource Director Kim Reese reported on the Health and Wellness sponsored golf outing on 
Saturday, September 10th with a 10:00 a.m. start time. Ms. Reese stated proceeds from the event will go to 
the United Way. Ms. Reese stated the committee is looking for sponsors and donations. Entry fees are 
$75.00 and include lunch. 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 29, 2022 
   

 5 

 

Mayor Kolowski IT thank you. 

Adam Thorson, Director of Parks, Recreation and Special Events reported the next Music in the Park will 
be September 16th with Demolition Men performing. 

CLOSED SESSION  

Alderman Waldorf made a motion to go into closed session to discuss litigation “when an action against, 
affecting or on behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court or 
administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is probable or imminent in which 
case the basis for the finding shall be recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting, 
meetings held to discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or 
dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body, including hearing 
testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee or legal counsel for the public body to determine its 
validity. Alderman Payton seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, 
Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Closed session began at 7:49 pm and ended at 9:04 p.m. 

Alderman Waldorf made a motion to reopen the meeting. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. Clerk 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus 
and Buffo present; Mayor Kolowski present. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

Alderman Buffo made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Tieman seconded the motion 
and motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 9:04 p.m. 



CITY OF PERU SPECIAL MEETING SPECIAL MEETING SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
   

 1 

A special meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Ken Kolowski in the Peru City 
Council Chambers on Thursday, September 1, 2022 at 12:00 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, 
Lukosus and Buffo present; Alderman Sapienza absent; Mayor Kolowski present. 
 
Others in attendance: Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert, Human Resources Director Kim Reese and 
Finance Director Justin Miller. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Alderman Payton made a motion to seek applicants for accounting department position. Alderman Buffo 
seconded the motion. Clerk Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, 
Waldorf, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; Alderman Sapienza absent; motion carried. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Alderman Tieman made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion 
and motion carried. Meeting adjourned 12:02 p.m.  
 
 



















FUND FUND NAME  
10 General Fund 
21 Garbage Fund
60 Utility Fund
80 Landfill Fund
85 Airport Fund

927,645.37$                                                

City of Peru Disbursements to be Paid 09/14/2022

440,829.37                                                   

893.41                                                          

384,563.74                                                   
28,132.60                                                     

73,226.25                                                     



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

QUADIENT INC 10 -5-12-56000 PSTG METER REFILL 500.00               GENERAL CLERK'S OFFICE POSTAGE

QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-12-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 8.43                   GENERAL CLERK'S OFFICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-12-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 191.17               GENERAL CLERK'S OFFICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

MARCO, INC 10 -5-14-56400 ENG CANON-SEPT 443.86               GENERAL CITY ENGINEER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS

QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-14-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 72.27                 GENERAL CITY ENGINEER OPERATING SUPPLIES

UPS 10 -5-14-65200 ENG-SHIPPING 32.90                 GENERAL CITY ENGINEER OPERATING SUPPLIES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-14-65500 FUEL-ENGINEER 555.19               GENERAL CITY ENGINEER FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

QUADIENT INC 10 -5-15-53500 METER FEE 50.00                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE BANK FEES/SERVICE CHARGES

LASALLE PUBLISHING/LEGA 10 -5-15-56200 BID-SCHWEICKERT STADIUM 522.15               GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PUBLISHING/ADVERTISING

MARCO, INC 10 -5-15-59900 SHARP CONTR-SEPT 71.24                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

LASALLE PUBLISHING/LEGA 10 -5-15-65200 BID-ST JOHNS STORM SWR 249.99               GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

MAUTINO DIST CO INC 10 -5-15-65200 WATER 55.65                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

MAUTINO DIST CO INC 10 -5-15-65200 WATER 63.60                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

MAUTINO DIST CO INC 10 -5-15-65200 WATER 55.65                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

MAUTINO DIST CO INC 10 -5-15-65200 AUG22 COOLERS RENTAL 24.00                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

MAUTINO DIST CO INC 10 -5-15-65200 WATER 55.65                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

OVAL WACKER CONSULTING 10 -5-15-91000 SEP22 CONSULTING 3,333.00            GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

ART SMITH 10 -5-15-92900 2017 ENVISION UNCASHED CKS 93.93                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

JAMES STRACK 10 -5-15-92900 2017 ENVISION UNCASHED CKS 11.56                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

THE FLOWER BAR 10 -5-15-92900 WALSH FUNERAL 80.00                 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

IL VALLEY PADS 10 -5-15-94000 DONATION 1,000.00            GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE DONATIONS

PERFECTLY FLAWED FOUNDA 10 -5-15-94000 GOLF OUTING DONATION 500.00               GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE DONATIONS

PERU POLICE PENSION FUN 10 -5-16-46400 SEPT22 CONTRIBUTION 83,333.33         GENERAL POLICE PPNS CONTRB/PPRT

RAY O'HERRON CO., INC 10 -5-16-47100 CREDI CA 131.88               GENERAL POLICE CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

BEARD BROTHERS INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPD31 HOCKING RPR 8,090.99            GENERAL POLICE R&M/VEHICLES

KUSTOM SIGNALS INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPD39 RADAR 1,258.00            GENERAL POLICE R&M/VEHICLES

KUSTOM SIGNALS INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPD40 RADAR 1,258.00            GENERAL POLICE R&M/VEHICLES

SCHIMMER INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPD43 MNTNC 420.12               GENERAL POLICE R&M/VEHICLES

SCHIMMER INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPR31 MTNC 515.46               GENERAL POLICE R&M/VEHICLES

SCHIMMER INC 10 -5-16-51300 PPD43 MNTNC 442.71               GENERAL POLICE R&M/VEHICLES



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

COMCAST BUSINESS 10 -5-16-56100 POLC INT TO 8/15 710.00               GENERAL POLICE TELEPHONE

COMCAST BUSINESS 10 -5-16-56100 POLC PHONE TO 8/15 437.44               GENERAL POLICE TELEPHONE

VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-16-56100 POLC WIRELESS TO 8/20 449.02               GENERAL POLICE TELEPHONE

MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC 10 -5-16-56400 POLC MNTNC 9/22 1,193.78            GENERAL POLICE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS

ACTION TARGET 10 -5-16-65200 TARGETS 166.91               GENERAL POLICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

CAPITAL ONE/WALMART 10 -5-16-65200 POLC SUPPLIES 253.72               GENERAL POLICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-16-65200 SUPPLIES 8.97                   GENERAL POLICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

DRESBACH DIST CO 10 -5-16-65200 BTHRM SUPPLIES 174.80               GENERAL POLICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

EITEN FEED LLC 10 -5-16-65220 DOG FOOD 108.60               GENERAL POLICE SPECIAL PROGRAMS EXPENSE

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 10 -5-16-65220 DOG FOOD 63.99                 GENERAL POLICE SPECIAL PROGRAMS EXPENSE

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-16-65500 FUEL-POLICE 6,236.82            GENERAL POLICE FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNA10 -5-16-68400 TLO 75.00                 GENERAL POLICE COMPUTER SOFTWARE

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-16-92900 COASTERS 11.19                 GENERAL POLICE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-16-92900 COASTERS 11.19                 GENERAL POLICE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

PERU FIREFIGHTERS PENSI 10 -5-17-46400 SEPT22 CONTRIBUTION 12,500.00         GENERAL FIRE FIRE PENS/PPRT CONTRIB

BALDIN'S GARAGE 10 -5-17-51300 301 MNTNCE 3,101.89            GENERAL FIRE R&M/VEHICLES

COMMUNICATION WORKS 10 -5-17-51300 312 ANTENNA MNTNCE 2,675.04            GENERAL FIRE R&M/VEHICLES

HALM'S MOTOR SERVICE 10 -5-17-51300 TRUCK SUPPLIES 51.97                 GENERAL FIRE R&M/VEHICLES

HALM'S MOTOR SERVICE 10 -5-17-51300 OIL DRY 650.00               GENERAL FIRE R&M/VEHICLES

MACQUEEN EMERGENCY 10 -5-17-51300 0325 RESCUE APP SVC CALL 2,616.24            GENERAL FIRE R&M/VEHICLES

ST MARGARET'S HEALTH 10 -5-17-53420 FRESCHI MED SVCS 1,010.50            GENERAL FIRE MEDICAL SERVICES

VERIZON WIRELESS 10 -5-17-56100 FIRE WIRELESS TO 8/20 218.92               GENERAL FIRE TELEPHONE

CINTAS CORP #396 10 -5-17-59900 FIRE-MATS 27.30                 GENERAL FIRE CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

CINTAS CORP #396 10 -5-17-59900 CITY HALL/FIRE MATS 27.30                 GENERAL FIRE CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

COMCAST CABLE 10 -5-17-59900 OCT22 CABLE 80.40                 GENERAL FIRE CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-17-65200 SUPPLIES 269.15               GENERAL FIRE OPERATING SUPPLIES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-17-65500 FUEL-FIRE 1,789.11            GENERAL FIRE FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

DINGES FIRE COMPANY 10 -5-17-66520 4 SHIELDS 264.96               GENERAL FIRE TURNOUT/SAFETY GEAR

EAGLE ENGRAVING 10 -5-17-92900 MABAS TAGS 29.00                 GENERAL FIRE MISCELLANEOUS EXP

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 10 -5-19-47100 URBANC CA 74.89                 GENERAL STREET CLOTHING ALLOWANCE



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

NAPA AUTO PARTS 10 -5-19-51200 LEAF MACHINE FILTERS 139.76               GENERAL STREET R&M/EQUIPMENT

NAPA AUTO PARTS 10 -5-19-51200 LEAF COLLECTOR OIL SEAL 119.96               GENERAL STREET R&M/EQUIPMENT

NAPA AUTO PARTS 10 -5-19-51200 LEAF COLLECTOR PARTS 3.16                   GENERAL STREET R&M/EQUIPMENT

CYCLOPS WELDING & MFG 10 -5-19-51300 D317 NEW DUMP BUMPER EXTEND 1,687.00            GENERAL STREET R&M/VEHICLES

HALM'S MOTOR SERVICE 10 -5-19-51300 BRAKE FLUID 56.88                 GENERAL STREET R&M/VEHICLES

HALM'S MOTOR SERVICE 10 -5-19-51300 RUBBER CAPS 32.28                 GENERAL STREET R&M/VEHICLES

KING TIRE 10 -5-19-51300 S103 TIRE RPR 132.50               GENERAL STREET R&M/VEHICLES

LASALLE COUNTY CYLINDER 10 -5-19-51300 SEAL KIT 478.78               GENERAL STREET R&M/VEHICLES

PERU AUTO ELECTRIC 10 -5-19-51300 S102 MOTORCRAFT OIL 89.00                 GENERAL STREET R&M/VEHICLES

ADVANCED ASPHALT CO 10 -5-19-51400 SURFACE MIX 1,859.25            GENERAL STREET R&M/STREETS

LADZINSKI CEMENT FINISH 10 -5-19-51400 6TH&WALNUT 1,199.56            GENERAL STREET R&M/STREETS

LADZINSKI CEMENT FINISH 10 -5-19-51400 7TH&FULTON 3,408.53            GENERAL STREET R&M/STREETS

MAZE LUMBER COMPANY 10 -5-19-51400 BLCKTP PATCH 77.94                 GENERAL STREET R&M/STREETS

MENARDS 10 -5-19-51400 SUPPLIES 74.76                 GENERAL STREET R&M/STREETS

IMUA-IL MUNICIPAL UTILI 10 -5-19-55510 JUL22 SAFETY TRNG 255.00               GENERAL STREET SAFETY TRAINING

COMCAST BUSINESS 10 -5-19-56100 PW SEPT22 PHONE 505.54               GENERAL STREET TELEPHONE

CINTAS CORP #396 10 -5-19-59900 CLEAN LOCKER ROOMS 162.32               GENERAL STREET CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

MICHAEL TODD & CO INC 10 -5-19-61200 ST NAME SIGNS 213.86               GENERAL STREET SIGNS

MICHAEL TODD & CO INC 10 -5-19-61200 NO DUMPING SIGN 157.46               GENERAL STREET SIGNS

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-19-65200 SUPPLIES-PAINT GIRLS 117.93               GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-19-65200 SUPPLIES 831.44               GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

IL SECRETARY OF STATE 10 -5-19-65200 D317 PLOW TITLE/PLATES 163.00               GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

LAWSON PRODUCTS INC 10 -5-19-65200 SUPPLIES 252.83               GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

MATCO TOOLS 10 -5-19-65200 BLOW GUN KIT 69.15                 GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 10 -5-19-65200 WEEDS-TANK SPRAYER 38.98                 GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 10 -5-19-65200 CHEMICALS 23.98                 GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

PERU AUTO ELECTRIC 10 -5-19-65200 SHOP-OIL 83.88                 GENERAL STREET OPERATING SUPPLIES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-19-65500 FUEL-STREETS 1,579.72            GENERAL STREET FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

DEERE CREDIT INC 10 -5-19-72370 LEASE/PURCHASE 9/22 11.24                 GENERAL STREET INT-JOHN DEERE CREDIT

DEERE CREDIT INC 10 -5-19-88400 LEASE/PURCHASE 9/22 3,852.69            GENERAL STREET NEW EQUIPMENT/VEHICLES



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-22-51200 COMM ROOM TV SPEAKERS 65.98                 GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS R&M/EQUIPMENT

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-22-51200 COMM ROOM SPKR WALL MOUNTS 95.12                 GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS R&M/EQUIPMENT

PERU GREENHOUSES INC 10 -5-22-51700 WATER TREES 3,200.00            GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS R&M/GROUNDS

STUART TREE SERV 10 -5-22-51700 TREE TRIMMING BAKER LAKE 3,230.00            GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS R&M/GROUNDS

AMEREN ILLINOIS 10 -5-22-57100 BOAT LAUNCH LIGHTS 14.68                 GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS UTILITIES

CINTAS CORP #396 10 -5-22-59900 CITY HALL/FIRE MATS 62.66                 GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

CONNIE BERG 10 -5-22-59900 CLEAN 8/27 150.00               GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

SERVICEMASTER BEST CLEA 10 -5-22-59900 PW AUG22 CLEAN 575.00               GENERAL BUILDINGS & GROUNDS CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

IRON SLEEK, INC 10 -5-23-51212 ICE RINK LINER 2,394.25            GENERAL PARKS R&M/PARK EQUIPMENT

ADVANCED TURF SOLUTIONS 10 -5-23-51700 GRASS SEED 311.29               GENERAL PARKS R&M/GROUNDS

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-23-65200 SUPPLIES 597.67               GENERAL PARKS OPERATING SUPPLIES

JD'S LOCK & KEY 10 -5-23-65200 REKEY CYLINDER 149.00               GENERAL PARKS OPERATING SUPPLIES

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 10 -5-23-65200 SUPPLIES 949.86               GENERAL PARKS OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 10 -5-23-65200 SUPPLIES 134.84               GENERAL PARKS OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 10 -5-23-65200 SUPPLIES 86.30                 GENERAL PARKS OPERATING SUPPLIES

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-23-65210 TASTE SUPPLIES 130.48               GENERAL PARKS EVENTS/PROGRAMS

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-23-65500 FUEL CHARGES-PARKS 911.77               GENERAL PARKS FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

VISSERING CONSTRUCTION 10 -5-23-89500 SCHW ICE HOUSE PAY1 7,621.20            GENERAL PARKS CONSTRUCTION

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 10 -5-24-65200 SUPPLIES 402.53               GENERAL CEMETERY OPERATING SUPPLIES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-24-65500 FUEL-CEMETERY 590.58               GENERAL CEMETERY FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 -5-26-65200 ETHERNET ADAPTERS 27.90                 GENERAL FINANCE, HR, IT OPERATING SUPPLIES

QUILL CORPORATION 10 -5-26-65200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 117.60               GENERAL FINANCE, HR, IT OPERATING SUPPLIES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 10 -5-26-65500 FUEL-IT 62.41                 GENERAL FINANCE, HR, IT FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

HYGIENIC INSTITUTE OF L 10 -5-29-52801 SEPT22 CONTRIBUTION 959.00               GENERAL HEALTH & WELFARE HYGIENIC INSTITUTE

PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANC 10 -5-29-52802 SEPT22 SVCS 6,523.88            GENERAL HEALTH & WELFARE AMBULANCE CONTRACT

IL VALLEY REGIONAL DISP 10 -5-29-52803 OCT22 PER CAP 18,563.25         GENERAL HEALTH & WELFARE IVRD PER CAPITA CONTRIB

REPUBLIC SERVICES 21 -5-90-57060 AUG22 SCAVENGER 73,209.00         GARBAGE OPERATING EXPENSES SCAVENGER CONTRACT

REPUBLIC SERVICES 21 -5-90-57060 JUL22 ADDL DUE 17.25                 GARBAGE OPERATING EXPENSES SCAVENGER CONTRACT

CONNECTING POINT COMPUT 60 -5-12-59900 SUPPORT 57.50                 UTILITY CLERK'S OFFICE CONTRACTUAL SERVICE

QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-12-65200 STAMP 45.55                 UTILITY CLERK'S OFFICE OPERATING SUPPLIES



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-12-65200 STAMP 53.99                 UTILITY CLERK'S OFFICE OPERATING SUPPLIES

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-15-47100 MAIER CA 24.99                 UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-15-47100 NAMBO CA 46.98                 UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 PW UNIF/MATS 475.35               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE UNIFORM SERVICE

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 ELEC UNIF/MATS 522.39               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE UNIFORM SERVICE

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 PW UNIF/MATS 475.35               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE UNIFORM SERVICE

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-47200 ELEC UNIF/MATS 446.32               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE UNIFORM SERVICE

KLEIN THORPE &JENKINS L 60 -5-15-53200 JUL22 LEGAL-ELEC 218.46               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE LEGAL FEES

ST MARGARET'S HEALTH 60 -5-15-53400 BRANDNER DRUG SCREEN 65.00                 UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

IMUA-IL MUNICIPAL UTILI 60 -5-15-55500 MAY22 SAFETY TRNG (255.00)              UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE EDUCATION/MEETINGS

IMUA-IL MUNICIPAL UTILI 60 -5-15-55500 JUN22 SAFETY TRNG 255.00               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE EDUCATION/MEETINGS

IMUA-IL MUNICIPAL UTILI 60 -5-15-55500 JUL22 SAFETY TRNG 255.00               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE EDUCATION/MEETINGS

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 PW UNIF/MATS 198.64               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 ELEC UNIF/MATS 154.54               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 PW UNIF/MATS 277.33               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

CINTAS CORP #396 60 -5-15-59900 ELEC UNIF/MATS 226.31               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

SERVICEMASTER BEST CLEA 60 -5-15-59900 ELEC AUG22 CLEAN 575.00               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 60 -5-15-65200 LAMINATOR 177.95               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 60 -5-15-65200 LABELS 16.49                 UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 60 -5-15-65200 MOUSE 114.05               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 60 -5-15-65200 LABEL MAKER 85.99                 UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-15-65200 RET SUPPLIES (65.98)                UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

QUILL CORPORATION 60 -5-15-65200 A/C ADAPTER FOR LABELER 29.99                 UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

SISLER ICE & ICE CREAM 60 -5-15-65200 ICE 105.00               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING SUPPLIES

DEMILIO'S 60 -5-15-92900 KASZ RET LUNCH 740.56               UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE MISCELLANEOUS

GENERAL FUND 60 -5-15-99200 SEPT22 FRANCHISE FEE 140,599.92       UTILITY ADMINISTRATIVE FRANCHISE FEE

JOHN'S SERVICE & SALES 60 -5-61-51100 NEW FURNACE/AC 6,680.00            UTILITY POWER & GENERATION R&M/BUILDINGS

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 60 -5-61-65200 SUPPLIES 310.31               UTILITY POWER & GENERATION OPERATING SUPPLIES

REVERE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 60 -5-61-65200 WD40 21.47                 UTILITY POWER & GENERATION OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 60 -5-61-65300 HAND TRUCK 94.99                 UTILITY POWER & GENERATION SMALL TOOLS



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

STUART C IRBY CO 60 -5-62-51200 DIELECTRIC TESTING 10,864.75         UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/EQUIPMENT

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51290 3PH UG CABINET 5,132.70            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51290 3PH UG CABINET 5,132.70            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51290 3PH UG CABINET 5,132.70            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51290 U-GUARD 722.40               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 279.35               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 1,437.50            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

MCMASTER-CARR 60 -5-62-51290 FUSE HOLDERS 655.29               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

MENARDS 60 -5-62-51290 WEATHERHEADS 24.54                 UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 POHAR SUBD SUPPLIES 24.69                 UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 PRETIUM SUPPLIES 240.49               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 161.14               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 WASH PK TENNIS CT LTS 87.68                 UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 WASH PK TENNIS CT LTS 8.95                   UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 4.11                   UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 8.23                   UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-51290 DISTR SUPPLIES 116.77               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM R&M/DIST EQUIP/LINES/SVCS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65200 MARKING PAINT 419.76               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATING SUPPLIES

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65200 MARKING PAINT 349.80               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATING SUPPLIES

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65200 GLOVES 558.90               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATING SUPPLIES

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65200 GLOVES 210.00               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OPERATING SUPPLIES

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65300 "14"" CUT-OFF SAW" 2,799.00            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SMALL TOOLS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65300 METER PROBE 395.00               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SMALL TOOLS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65300 CRIMPER KIT 2,085.00            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SMALL TOOLS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65300 3 CUTTING JAWS 1,257.00            UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SMALL TOOLS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-62-65300 RECALIBRATE LOCATOR 875.00               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SMALL TOOLS

SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 60 -5-62-65300 AC/DC CLAMP METER 352.41               UTILITY DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SMALL TOOLS

ANIXTER INC 60 -5-63-51200 LED DRIVERS FOR STREET LGIHTS 3,075.00            UTILITY STREET LIGHTING R&M/EQUIPMENT

REVERE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 60 -5-63-51200 PEORIA ST LIGHTS 1,005.82            UTILITY STREET LIGHTING R&M/EQUIPMENT

CENTRAL MILLWRIGHT SERV 60 -5-64-51200 HYDRO PLANT WORK 200.00               UTILITY HYDROELECTRIC PLANT R&M/EQUIPMENT



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

TOEDTER OIL CO INC 60 -5-64-51200 GEAR OIL 1,325.90            UTILITY HYDROELECTRIC PLANT R&M/EQUIPMENT

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 60 -5-64-65200 SUPPLIES 735.98               UTILITY HYDROELECTRIC PLANT OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 60 -5-64-65200 SUPPLIES 139.74               UTILITY HYDROELECTRIC PLANT OPERATING SUPPLIES

TOEDTER OIL CO INC 60 -5-64-65200 DRUM RETURN (100.00)              UTILITY HYDROELECTRIC PLANT OPERATING SUPPLIES

CENTRAL MILLWRIGHT SERV 60 -5-72-51100 REMOVE PIPING/HANGERS 1,835.52            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT R&M BUILDINGS

COMPLETE INTEGRATION & 60 -5-72-51200 PARTS 135.00               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT R&M EQUIPMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-52804 WATER&WWTP CONTRACT 23,331.63         UTILITY WATER TREATMENT WS/WWTP SERVICE CONTRACT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 EAKAS PT ANALYSIS 782.26               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 CF PT ANALYSIS 434.72               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 METOKOTE PT ANALYSIS 498.54               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 NANOCHEM PT ANALYSIS 630.77               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 FLINT HILLS PT ANALYSIS 795.29               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 FLINT HILLS PT ANALYSIS 738.82               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 JAS HARDIE PT ANALYSIS 521.06               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 JAS HARDIE PT ANALYSIS 521.06               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 UNYTITE PT ANALYSIS 511.84               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

TEST INC. 60 -5-72-53850 PRETIUM PT ANALYSIS 529.21               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT ANALYSIS PRETREATMENT

MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 4,058.10            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT SALT

MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 3,947.84            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT SALT

MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 3,999.49            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT SALT

MIDWEST SALT 60 -5-72-61300 SALT 3,973.67            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT SALT

HAWKINS, INC 60 -5-72-62000 PUMP 1,790.00            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT CHEM FOR PH/IRON CONTROL

HAWKINS, INC 60 -5-72-62000 SODIUM THIOSULFATE 3,278.67            UTILITY WATER TREATMENT CHEM FOR PH/IRON CONTROL

COLUMBIA PIPE & SUPPLY 60 -5-72-65200 SUPPLIES 21.55                 UTILITY WATER TREATMENT OPERATING SUPPLIES

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 60 -5-72-65200 SUPPLIES 599.01               UTILITY WATER TREATMENT OPERATING SUPPLIES

UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-51520 WM LINE TO VETS 21,271.00         UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M/WATER MAINS

UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-51520 WM LINE TO VETS 1,895.00            UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M/WATER MAINS

UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-51520 WM LINE TO VETS 700.00               UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M/WATER MAINS

CORE&MAIN 60 -5-73-52000 RET REPAIR CLAMPS (2,300.18)          UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M SEWERS

MERTEL GRAVEL CO 60 -5-73-52000 CONCRETE 1,181.95            UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M SEWERS



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-73-52000 SEWER PARTS STOCK 1,003.50            UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M SEWERS

CORE&MAIN 60 -5-73-52960 REPAIR CLAMPS 987.13               UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M METERS

CORE&MAIN 60 -5-73-52960 REPAIR CLAMPS 2,902.90            UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M METERS

CORE&MAIN 60 -5-73-52960 COUPLING 571.58               UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION R&M METERS

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 60 -5-73-65200 SUPPLIES 332.63               UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION OPERATING SUPPLIES

MENARDS 60 -5-73-65200 SUPPLIES 37.28                 UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION OPERATING SUPPLIES

MICHAEL TODD & CO INC 60 -5-73-65200 MARKING PAINT 481.69               UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION OPERATING SUPPLIES

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65300 WRENCHES/RATCHETS 319.96               UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION SMALL TOOLS

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 60 -5-73-65300 WRENCHES 59.99                 UTILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION SMALL TOOLS

COLUMBIA PIPE & SUPPLY 60 -5-74-51200 PARTS 1,739.38            UTILITY WATER DISPOSAL PLANT R&M EQUIPMENT

LEONE GRAIN & SUPPLY IN 60 -5-74-65200 ROUNDUP 325.00               UTILITY WATER DISPOSAL PLANT OPERATING SUPPLIES

BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E401 MNTNCE 1,700.80            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E201 MNTNCE 4,961.27            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E201 MNTNCE 1,932.63            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E301 MNTNCE 4,172.06            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

BALDIN'S GARAGE 60 -5-75-51300 E301 MNTNCE 303.61               UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

HALM'S MOTOR SERVICE 60 -5-75-51300 E201 ANTI FRZ 13.49                 UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

PERU AUTO ELECTRIC 60 -5-75-51300 W202 OIL 129.00               UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO 60 -5-75-51300 V101 MNTNCE 1,347.33            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

TEREX SERVICES 60 -5-75-51300 E301 MNTNC 1,150.28            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES R&M/VEHICLES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 60 -5-75-65500 AUG22 FUEL-ELEC 2,203.93            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

US BANK VOYAGER FLEET S 60 -5-75-65500 AUG22 FUEL-WTR 2,001.38            UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES FUEL & OIL VEHICLES

IL SECRETARY OF STATE 60 -5-75-93100 FREIGHTLINER TITLE/PLATES 163.00               UTILITY TRUCKS & VEHICLES LICENSE/TITLE FEES

DOUBLE M TRUCKING 80 -5-90-51700 DIRT HAUL 2,240.00            LANDFILL OPERATING EXPENSES R&M GROUNDS

DOUBLE M TRUCKING 80 -5-90-51700 DIRT HAUL 4,480.00            LANDFILL OPERATING EXPENSES R&M GROUNDS

DOUBLE M TRUCKING 80 -5-90-51700 DIRT HAUL 4,480.00            LANDFILL OPERATING EXPENSES R&M GROUNDS

MARTIN EQUIPMENT OF IL 80 -5-90-51700 LF-HITACHI RENTAL 2,365.00            LANDFILL OPERATING EXPENSES R&M GROUNDS

PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICE 80 -5-90-53850 LF2 TEST 2022 Q2 14,567.60         LANDFILL OPERATING EXPENSES ANALYSIS OF SAMPLES

GATZA ELECTRICAL CONTRA 85 -5-90-51100 NEW DOOR MOTOR 512.00               AIRPORT OPERATING EXPENSES R&M/BUILDINGS

PERU AUTO ELECTRIC 85 -5-90-51213 BATTERY-AIRPORT FUEL TNK 273.00               AIRPORT OPERATING EXPENSES R&M/FUEL EQUIPMENT



VENDOR ACCOUNT DETAIL AMOUNT FUND DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

DEBO ACE HARDWARE 85 -5-90-65200 SUPPLIES 71.96                 AIRPORT OPERATING EXPENSES OPERATING SUPPLIES

MAZE LUMBER COMPANY 85 -5-90-65200 AIRPORT SEWER LINE 36.45                 AIRPORT OPERATING EXPENSES OPERATING SUPPLIES

TOTAL 609,836.10       



GENERAL FUND
10 ELECTED OFFICIALS 7,381.57
12 CLERK'S OFFICE 2,265.19
14 ENGINEER 15,551.22
15 ADMINISTRATIVE 1,260.72
16 POLICE 99,963.32
17 FIRE 35,187.68
19 STREET 29,722.82
22 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 1,228.29
23 PARKS 11,272.14
24 CEMETERY 5,120.88
25 CITY GARAGE 5,950.11
26 FINANCE, HR, & IT 21,610.97

10 TOTAL GENERAL FUND 236,514.91

UTILITY FUND
12 CLERK'S OFFICE 8,468.75
15 ADMINISTRATIVE 2,373.80
61 POWER & GENERATION 9,123.73
62 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 36,653.47
64 HYDROELECTRIC PLANT 5,005.57
72 WATER TREATMENT 0.00
73 WATER DISTRIBUTION 19,669.04

60 TOTAL UTILITY FUND 81,294.36

TOTAL 317,809.27$  

City of Peru Payroll Totals 



CITY OF PERU 

 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING OF THE  

PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION 

  
Date of Hearing:   August 31, 2022 

Regarding:  Petition of Crystal Loughran, Executor of the Estate of Carol J. Piwonski 

Properties:  1202 Chambers Street & 830 8th Street, Peru, Illinois 
________________ 

 

 Planning/Zoning Commission Chairman, Cary Miller, called the Planning/Zoning Commission to 
order at 5:00 pm.  Roll call was taken of the Planning/Zoning Commission and Members Atkinson, Lucas, 

Kalsto, Brady, and Special City Attorney, Herb Klein were all present.  The Notice of Public Hearing, 

which was published in the News-Tribune on August 15, 2022, in accordance with Illinois law, was read 

and admitted into the record as City Exhibit 1.   Notice was mailed to all City of Peru officials as well as to 
the Petitioner.      

 

The filed Petition with attached Plat of Survey was admitted as Petitioner Exhibit No. 1.   
 

Petitioner, Crystal Loughran, was sworn.   Testimony was given that the Petition was filed in order 

to make the properties marketable for sale by dividing the lots as shown on the Plat of Survey.  No new 
structures were being constructed.  The home at 1202 Chambers Street planned to be sold.  The home at 

830 8th Street is to be acquired from the Estate by Petitioner and used as her residence.  Both properties 

predate the City’s Zoning and Subdivision ordinances.  The family of Petitioner owned the properties for 

over one hundred (100) years.  She is the Executor of her estate.  Testimony provided that the property as 
currently configured would not be expected to provide a reasonable return, that no detriment would be made 

to neighboring properties, and there would be no increased congestion nor threat to public safety by 

approving the Petition.  
 

Chairman, Cary Miller reported that he reviewed with the Petitioner with City Engineer, Eric Carls, 

and that his department had reviewed the Petition, had no objections, and recommends approval of the 
Petition as presented.    

  

Chair Miller noted that no objectors were present at the hearing.     

 
 Member Lucas made a motion to approve the requests A-E, as stated in the Notice of Hearing, as 

to Parcel 1, it was seconded by Member Kalsto, and it was approved unanimously.   

 
 Member Kalsto made a motion to approve the requests A-B, as stated in the Notice of Hearing, as 

to Parcel 2, it was seconded by Member Atkinson, and it was approved unanimously.  

 

 Member Brady, made a motion to approve items A-C as to both Parcels 1 and 2, as stated in the 
Notice of Hearing, it was seconded by Member Atkinson, and it was approved unanimously.    

 

Member Atkinson made a Motion to close the Public Hearing and adjourn, seconded by Member 
Brady.  It passed unanimously, and the hearing closed at approximately 5:30 pm.     

   

 
Respectfully Submitted by Chair, Cary Miller 

 Planning/Zoning Commission     

 

      By:  ____________________________ 
                             It’s Attorney 











1 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 – BUSINESSES 

OF THE CITY OF PERU CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 

CREATE A NEW ARTICLE IX. – MOBILE FOOD 

VENDORS AND MOBILE FOOD VEHICLES. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Peru, Illinois (“City”) is a home rule unit of local government and 

pursuant to Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Illinois Constitution, may exercise any power and 

perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs including, but not limited to, the power 

to license and regulate for the protection of public health, safety, and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant sections 11-42-5 and 11-60-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 

5/1-1-1 et seq., the City may regulate and license certain businesses operating within the corporate 

boundaries of the City, and to fix the amount, terms, and manner of issuing and revoking licenses; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council have determined that the City’s Code does not adequately set 

forth the desired standards and regulations for mobile food vendors and mobile food vehicles, 

commonly known as “food trucks;” and 

WHEREAS, the City Council have determined that allowing mobile food vendors to operate 

mobile food vehicles in the City’s corporate limits, subject to certain rules and regulations, is in the 

best interests of the City and its citizens.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The City Council finds as fact the recitals contained in the preamble 

to this Ordinance and incorporates them herein by reference. 

SECTION 2: Code Amendment. Chapter 26 – Businesses, of the City of Peru Code of 

Ordinances shall be and is hereby amended to add a new Article IX. – Mobile Food Vendors and 

Mobile Food Vehicles, which shall read and provide as follows:  

Chapter 26 – BUSINESSES 

 

ARTICLE IX. - MOBILE FOOD VENDORS AND MOBILE FOOD VEHICLES 

 

Sec. 26-240. - Definitions.  For the purposes of this Article, the following terms shall have the 

meanings provided: 

 

Mobile food vehicle means a self-contained food service operation located in a readily 

moveable, motorized, wheeled or towed vehicle, with facilities for storing, preparing, 



2 

 

 

displaying and/or serving food or non-alcoholic beverages for retail sale intended for individual 

consumption, commonly referred to as a food truck. 

 

Mobile food vendor means an individual, corporation, firm, partnership, association, 

proprietorship, not-for-profit corporation or other legal entity engaged in the business of selling 

food or non-alcoholic beverages from a mobile food vehicle. "Mobile food vendor" does not 

include ice cream vehicle operators that do not park on private property for the purpose of 

serving customers. 

 

Sponsoring business means an individual, corporation, firm, partnership, association, 

proprietorship, not-for-profit corporation or other legal entity that owns, leases, and/or 

occupies real property located within the corporate boundaries of the City where a mobile food 

vendor will operate its mobile food vehicle under this Article.  

 

Special event means an event held on public or private property including, but not 

limited to, parades, festivals, block parties, athletic events, outdoor concerts, circuses, rodeos, 

fireworks displays, carnivals, movie or television productions, or other public meetings or 

events which significantly impact the City or meet some or all of the following criteria: 

 

(1)  Closure of roads, streets, or City blocks. 

 

(2)  Issuance of multiple permits or leases. 

 

(3)  Use of City-owned property. 

 

(4)  Use of City services. 

 

(5)  Use of amplified sound. 

 

Special event permittee means an individual, corporation, firm, partnership, 

association, proprietorship, not-for-profit corporation or other legal entity that obtains any and 

all permits and/or licenses required by the City to operate a special event within the corporate 

boundaries of the City. 

 

Sec. 26-241. – Mobile food vehicle permits. 

 

(a)  Permit required. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a mobile food vehicle within 

the corporate boundaries of the City unless that person has applied for and received a 

mobile food vehicle permit from the City for said vehicle in compliance with this Article. 

 

(b)  Application for Permit; Required information. 

Applications for a mobile food vehicle permit under this Article shall be filed with the City 

Clerk’s office on a form provided by the City. The application shall require, at a minimum, 

the following: 

 

(1) A copy of the applicant’s completed “Mobile Food Unit Plan Review 

Application” submitted to the LaSalle County Health Department.   

 



3 

 

 

(2) The mobile food vendor's Illinois business tax (IBT) number, along with 

documentation sufficient to show that the mobile food vendor's point of sale is 

and shall be noted as the City of Peru for all sales occurring within the City's 

corporate boundaries. 

 

(3) The make, model, and vehicle identification number of the mobile food vehicle 

that the mobile food vendor intends to operate. 

 

(4) Photograph(s) of the mobile food vehicle that the mobile food vendor intends 

to operate, sufficient for the identification thereof. 

 

(5) Proof of registration and automobile insurance for each mobile food vehicle. 

 

(6) Copies of the mobile food vehicle’s itinerary, operating schedule, commissary 

agreement (if applicable), restroom agreement, and menu as required by the 

LaSalle County Health Department’s Mobile Food Unity Plan Review 

Application. 

 

(7) Valid copies of all applicable permits from the LaSalle County Health 

Department. 

 

(8) Certificate(s) of insurance sufficient to show that the mobile food vendor is 

covered by all insurance policies required by this Article. 

 

(9) A consent, release, and authorization form, to be provided by the City, 

authorizing the City and the LaSalle County Health Department to share, on a 

continuing basis, any and all information relevant to the mobile food vendor's 

application and business, as well as any enforcement actions or other 

proceedings initiated by the LaSalle County Health Department in connection 

with or against said mobile food vendor.  

 

(c)  Approval of Application. 

 

(1)  The City shall not consider any application unless and until said application is 

complete in full compliance with this Section. Once the City has received a 

complete application, it shall approve or deny the application within ten (10) 

business days. 

 

(2)  An applicant may be denied a mobile food vehicle permit under any of the 

following conditions: 

i.  The applicant failed to properly complete the permit application.  

ii.  The applicant has violated any provision of this Article. 

iii.  The applicant failed to qualify for any other license, permit, or certification 

required by this Article. 

iv.  The applicant has had a mobile food vehicle permit revoked under this 

Article within two (2) calendar years of the date of application. 

 

 



4 

 

 

(3)  If the City finds that the application meets with all conditions of approval and 

operation under this Article, it shall grant the application and issue the mobile 

food vendor a permit for the mobile food vehicle in question. 

 

(4)  All such permits are expressly conditional upon continuous compliance with 

all conditions of approval and operation set forth in this Article. 

 

(d)  Annual Permit Fee. In the event that the City grants a mobile food vehicle permit 

pursuant to this Article, the mobile food vendor shall immediately pay an annual 

permit fee to the City in the amount of $200.00. The annual permit fee required by 

this Section shall not be prorated. 

 

(e)  Duration of Permit. The permit shall be valid only for the date and times listed on 

the permit. Annual permits are issued for the calendar year from May 1st through 

April 30th  of the next year. 

 

(f)  Permits to be displayed. A copy of the approved mobile food vehicle permit shall 

be clearly displayed on the mobile food vehicle at all times while operating within 

the corporate boundaries of the City of Peru. 

 

(g)  Each mobile food truck to be individually permitted. A mobile food vehicle permit 

issued pursuant to this Article is specific to the vehicle permitted. Each such vehicle 

must be separately permitted and no permit may be transferred from one mobile 

food vehicle to another. 

 

Sec. 26-242. - Special event permits. 

(a) A mobile food vendor that intends to operate any mobile food vehicles in conjunction with 

a special event is not required to apply for and receive an annual mobile food vehicle permit 

pursuant to this Article. Instead, such a mobile food vendor shall file a special event permit 

application with the City, which shall include substantially the same information as an 

application for a mobile food vehicle permit, and which shall be accompanied by the 

written consent of the special event permittee in question to allow said mobile food vendor 

to operate its mobile food vehicle(s) in conjunction with the special event in question. 

 

(b) No application fee shall be required for a special event permit. In the event that the special 

event permit is granted by the City, the mobile food vendor shall pay a special event permit 

fee equal to $10.00 per mobile food vehicle per day for the duration of the requested permit, 

which shall not be longer than the duration of the special event itself. 

 

(c) Upon issuance of a special event permit pursuant to this section, the permitted mobile food 

vendor and associated mobile food vehicle(s) shall be subject to all conditions and 

regulations of this Article to the same extent as any other holder of a mobile food vehicle 

permit. Further, the special event permittee in question is and shall be responsible to ensure 

full compliance with all applicable provisions of this Article, as well as all other City, 

LaSalle County, and State of Illinois codes and regulations during the special event in 

question. 

 

 



5 

 

 

Sec. 26-243. - Use and operation of mobile food vehicles. 

(a) Conditions of Approval and Operation. All mobile food vehicles must be operated in 

compliance with the following regulations and conditions: 

 

(1)  Mobile food vehicles must comply with all noise regulations of the City. 

 

(2)  Mobile food vehicles must provide receptacles for refuse and properly dispose 

of all waste. 

 

(3)  The food vendor's point of sale shall be noted as the City of Peru for all sales 

occurring within the City's corporate boundaries. 

 

(4)  Mobile food vendors must carry, at their own cost and expense, comprehensive 

and general liability and casualty insurance related to its operation within the 

City of Peru, including food service, restaurant operation, and vehicle 

operation, with minimum policy limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

per occurrence. No cancellation or reduction in coverage may occur during the 

effective period of the mobile food vendor's permit. 

 

(5)  Mobile food vendors must maintain all required Food, Food Safety, Mobile 

Food Unit, and other food establishment permit(s)/license(s) issued by the 

LaSalle County Health Department at all times. Mobile food vendors shall fully 

comply at all times with the Illinois Department of Public Health Food Service 

Sanitation Code, LaSalle County Food Sanitation Ordinance, and all other 

applicable City, county and state codes and ordinances, and shall display its 

certifications and permits/licenses on the food vehicle in an area plainly visible 

to customers at all times during operation. 

 

(6)  Each mobile food vehicle must pass a food establishment safety inspection 

conducted by the LaSalle County Health Department and shall provide the City 

with proof of such passage. 

 

(7)  Mobile food vendors must notify the City within three (3) business days if any 

mobile food vehicle fails to be certified, fails to be approved by, or fails an 

inspection from the LaSalle County Health Department. No mobile food 

vehicle may be operated within the City at any time that it is not certified and 

approved by the LaSalle County Health Department.  

 

(8)  Mobile food vendors must maintain records of all applications, inspections, 

permits, and certifications related to this Article, as well as records of all sales, 

hours of operation, and any other operational-related records, for a minimum 

of five (5) years. All such records shall be made available to the City upon 

request, at a reasonable time and place and upon reasonable notice. 

 

(9) All food preparation shall be conducted in strict accordance with all applicable 

City, LaSalle County Health Department, and State of Illinois codes, 

regulations and ordinances. 

 



6 

 

 

(10)  Drive-through service shall be prohibited. 

 

Sec. 26-244. – Locations. 

(a) A mobile food vendor may operate a permitted mobile food vehicle on private property 

zoned Commercial (B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, & B-5) or Industrial (M-1 & M-2) with the written 

consent of the owner, tenant, or lawful occupant of said property. The mobile food vendor 

shall maintain written consent from said owner, tenant, or other lawful occupant of the 

property in question with the mobile food vehicle at all times it is in operation on the 

property and shall further present said written consent to any City official or peace officer 

upon request. 

 

(b) A mobile food vendor operating in conjunction with a special event, shall operate a mobile 

food vehicle on property where the special event is permitted to operate. 

 

(c) Mobile food vehicles are prohibited as a principal/primary use and may not be operated on 

a vacant lot not associated with a sponsoring business or special event. 

 

(d) Mobile food vehicles shall not park in fire lanes, handicap parking spaces, or in any other 

location that will impede traffic flow or create unsafe conditions for pedestrians or motor 

vehicle traffic. 

 

(e) Mobile food vehicles may not operate in any residential zoning district. 

 

(f) Mobile food vehicles must maintain a three hundred (300) foot distance from the property 

boundary of any existing restaurant in operation unless consented to by said restaurant in 

writing, and a copy of said written consent is provided to the City.  

 

(g) Unless expressly requested and expressly authorized by the City in writing in the mobile 

food vehicle permit in question, including during special events, mobile food vehicles are 

prohibited from operating in a parked/stationary manner in the public right-of-way or on 

public property, including without limitation on-street public parking spaces. 

 

Sec. 26-245. - Hours of operation. 

(a) The hours of operation for all mobile food vehicles in the City shall be limited to 10:00 

a.m. through 10:00 p.m., Sunday through Saturday. 

 

(b)  A mobile food vendor operating a mobile food vehicle in conjunction with a special event 

may operate a mobile food vehicle during all hours that the special event is permitted to 

operate. 

 

Sec. 26-246. - Administration and enforcement.   It shall be the duty of the City’s Code 

Enforcement Officer and other law enforcement officers to enforce the terms and provisions 

of this Article and to make or cause to be made such regulations for mobile food vendors and 

mobile food vehicles to accomplish such administration or enforcement of the provisions of 

this article. 

 

 

 



7 

 

 

Sec. 26-247. - Exemptions. 

(a)  A mobile food vendor seeking a mobile food vehicle permit or special event permit under 

this Article may apply, in writing, for a fee exemption in order to avoid paying any and all 

applicable application and permit fees. Such an exemption may be granted by the Mayor 

or his or her designee if the mobile food vendor can show it will be operating under contract 

with and solely on property owned or controlled by: 

 

(1)  The City of Peru or some other political subdivision of the State of Illinois; or 

 

(2)  A recognized educational institution; or 

 

(3)  An Illinois-registered not-for-profit organization. 

 

Sec. 26-248. - Suspension or revocation of permit.  The Mayor may, after written notice and 

the opportunity for a hearing, suspend or revoke any mobile food vehicle permit under any of 

the following conditions: 

 

(a) The mobile food vendor has violated any provision of this Article, or any ordinance, law, 

code, or regulation of the City of Peru, County of LaSalle, or State of Illinois relating to 

public health, safety, or fire protection; or 

 

(b) The mobile food vendor made a false material statement in its application. 

 

(c)  The sponsoring business notifies the City of Peru in writing that the food vehicle no longer 

has permission to operate on its property. 

 

Sec. 26-249. - Penalties.  Any person that violates any of the provisions of this Article shall 

be subject to punishment as provided in Section 1-19 of the City’s Code. 

 

Secs. 26-249 – 26-259. – Reserved. 

  

SECTION 3:  Validity.  In the event any provision(s), portion(s), or clause(s) of this 

Ordinance shall be declared to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

such adjudication shall in no way affect or impair the validity or enforceability of any of the 

remaining provisions, portions, or clauses of this Ordinance that may be given effect without such 

invalid or unenforceable provision(s), portion(s), or clause(s).  

SECTION 4: Conflicts. The provisions of this Ordinance shall take precedence and be 

interpreted as superseding any other ordinance, resolution, motion, or parts thereof which are in 

conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 4: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 

from and after its passage, approval and publication according to law.   

 



8 

 

 

 PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ___ voting aye, ___ voting nay, 

___ absent, and Mayor Kolowski ______ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 12th day 

of September, 2022.        

      

        APPROVED: September 12, 2022 

 

 

        ___________________________________ 

                                                                                          Ken Kolowski, Mayor 

 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

      David R. Bartley, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Aldermen Aye Nay Absent 

Ballard 

Tieman 

Payton 

Edgcomb 

Waldorf 

Sapienza 

Lukosus 

Buffo 
 





















1 
 

    ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 – ADMINISTRATION, 

ARTICLE III. - OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES, DIVISION 3. – LEGAL 

COUNSEL, OF THE CITY OF PERU CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Peru, Illinois ("City") is a home rule municipality pursuant to Section 

6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and as such may exercise any power 

and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is advisable and in the best interests 

of the City to amend the City of Peru Code of Ordinances as it pertains to the City’s legal counsel to 

remove duplicative provisions, and modify the duties and compensation of the City’s Corporation 

Counsel.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1:  Recitals.  The City Council finds as fact the recitals contained in the preamble to 

this Ordinance and incorporates them herein by reference. 

 SECTION 2:  Code Amendments.  Chapter 2 – ADMINISTRATION, ARTICLE III. – 

OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES, DIVISION 3. – LEGAL COUNSEL, of the City of Peru Code of 

Ordinances shall be and is hereby amended by adding the underlined provisions and deleting the 

provisions noted with a strikethrough as follows: 

Sec. 2-136. – Corporation Counsel. 

(a) There is hereby created the office of corporation counsel to be an executive 

office of the city. The corporation counsel shall be appointed by the mayor, by 

and with the advice and consent of the city council. 

 

(b) The corporation counsel shall be the legal advisor of the city and of all 

committees, commissions, boards and officials of the city and shall render 

advice on all legal questions affecting the city. Upon request of the mayor or 

city council, he shall reduce such opinion to writing. 

 

(c) The corporation counsel shall prosecute and defend all suits or actions at law 

or equity in courts of record to which the city may be a party or in which it may 

be interested or which may be brought against, or by, any officer of the city on 

behalf of the city or in the capacity of such person as an officer of the city. 

 

(d) It shall be the duty of the corporation counsel to pursue the full enforcement of 

all judgments or decrees rendered or entered in favor of the city in courts of 

record and of all similar interlocutory orders. 

 



2 
 

(e) It shall be the duty of the corporation counsel to draft or supervise the 

phraseology of any contracts, leases or other documents or instruments, to 

which the city may be a party, and to draft ordinances and resolutions covering 

any subjects within the powers of the city. 

 

(f) It shall be the duty of the corporation counsel to perform such other legally 

permissible and proper duties and functions as directed or assigned by the 

Mayor and City Council. 

 

Sec. 2-137. – Corporate Counsel. Reserved. 

(a) There is hereby created the office of corporate counsel, which shall be filled by 

appointment by the mayor, by and with the advice and consent of the city 

council. 

 

(b) It shall be the duty of the corporate counsel to: 

(1) Prosecute all cases for a violation of this Code and the city ordinances; 

(2) Assist the police department in its legal problems concerning its work; 

and 

(3) Defend the city in suits brought against it. 

 

Sec. 2-138. – Compensation. 

The corporation counsel shall receive reasonable and appropriate compensation 

commensurate with fulfilling the duties prescribed by ordinance and such other legally 

permissible and proper duties and functions as directed or assigned to corporation counsel by 

the mayor and city council. Such compensation shall be determined by agreement between the 

city and corporation counsel. In the absence of such agreement, corporation counsel shall 

receive compensation for services as follows: 

The corporation counsel or the corporate counsel, as the case may be, shall 

receive compensation for services as follows: 

(1) For rendering legal advice to the mayor, city council, and other city 

officials at all regularly scheduled city council meetings, compensation 

shall be a monthly retainer of $250.00 to be paid as follows: 

a. From the general fund, $100.00; 

b. From the electric fund, $125.00; and 

c. From the water and sewer fund, $25.00. 

 

(2) For all other legal services provided to the mayor, city council and all 

departments of the city, the compensation shall be reasonable and 

customary, plus expenses incurred. 

 

Sec. 2-139. – Additional counsel. 

Only the city council may retain the services of additional or special counsel to 

further advise the city, other than the corporation counsel, to give advice or provide 

legal services to the city. Additional or special counsel shall receive reasonable and 

customary compensation, plus expenses incurred, for legal services provided to the 

city.  

 



3 
 

SECTION 3:  If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or 

circumstances is ruled unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid application 

or provision, and each invalid provision or invalid application of this Ordinance is severable.  

SECTION 4:  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication as provided by law. 

 PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ___ voting aye, ___ voting nay, ___ absent, 

and Mayor Kolowski _____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 12th day of September, 2022.  

           

        APPROVED: September 12, 2022 

 

        ___________________________________ 

                                                                                          Ken Kolowski, Mayor 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

      David R. Bartley, City Clerk 

 

Aldermen Aye Nay Absent 

Ballard 

Tieman 

Payton 

Edgcomb 

Waldorf 

Sapienza 

Lukosus 

Buffo 

 

 



















 

 
1. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 6657 
ENTITLED: “AN ORDINANCE FIXING WAGES FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY 
OF PERU, ILLINOIS COMMENCING MAY 1, 2022 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2021” 

 
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2022, the City Council of the City of Peru, an Illinois home 

rule municipal corporation, (hereinafter “City”) duly passed and adopted Ordinance No. 6657 

entitled “An Ordinance Fixing Wages for Employees of the City of Peru, Illinois  

Commencing May 1, 2022 and Ending April 30, 2023” (hereinafter “Wage Ordinance”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City concurs that for fiscal year 2023 there shall 

be revisions within Exhibit A.                                                                                                                  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

AMENDMENT:  The Wage Ordinance shall be, and is hereby amended to read in its 

entirety as follows: 

SECTION 1:  The Wage Ordinance is hereby amended to revise the compensation for 

the Finance Officer position. 

SECTION 2:  EFFECTIVE DATE:  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately 

upon passage and approval. 

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting 

nay, ____ absent, and Mayor Kolowski ____ voting ____, which meeting was held on the ____ 

day of ______, A.D. 2022. 



 

 
2. 

 
 
APPROVED: ____________  

 
 

_________________________________ 
     Ken Kolowski, Mayor 

 
 
(CORPORATE SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Bartley, City Clerk 
 
 
     Aldermen             Aye       Nay     Absent 
  Ballard     

Tieman    
Payton 
Edgcomb 
Waldorf 
Sapienza 
Lukosus 
Buffo 

 



WAGE ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2023 Exhibit A

Year
DEPARTMENT 5/1/2022 - 4/30/2023
Human Resources Department: *Rates are Per Year

Director of Human Resources $89,301.00

$66,950.00

*Rates are Per Hour

Human Resources Assistant $15.45-$26.78

Part-time Human Resources Assistant   $15.45-$17.51

Director of Human Resources and Human Resources Manager shall also receive 

Section 8 Additional Benefits 2, 3, and 5 as hereinafter provided, except no

benefits shall apply to part-time employees.

Finance Department: *Rates are Per Year

Director of Finance $104,295.59

 Finance Officer $90,000.00

*Rates are Per Hour

Senior Accountant without CPA certification $24.72-$32.96

Senior Accountant with CPA certification $24.72-$35.02

Staff Accountant $15.45-$26.78

Director of Finance, Finance Officer, and Accountants shall also receive Section 8

Additional Benefits 2, 3, 4 (if hired prior to 05/01/13), and 5 as hereinafter provided, 

except no benfits shall apply to part-time employees.  

City Clerk's Office: *Rates are Per Hour

Deputy City Clerk $15.45-$22.66 

Utility Billing Clerk (TIER 1) $28.18

Utility Billing Clerk (TIER 2) $15.45-$26.78 

Part-time Meter Reader/Office Assistant $15.45-$17.51 

Part-time Meter Reader

City Clerk's Office Employees shall also receive Section 8 Additional

Benefits 2, 3, 4 (if hired prior to 05/01/13), and 5 as hereinafter provided, except no 

benefits shall apply to part-time employees.  

Public Services Department: *Rate is Per Year

Public Services Manager $109,560.94

Per Separate Compensation Agreement

Page 1 Rev. 9/12/22



WAGE ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2023 Exhibit A

Year
DEPARTMENT 5/1/2022 - 4/30/2023
Public Services Manager shall also receive Section 8 Additional Benefits 2, 3 and 5

as hereinafter provided.

*Rates are Per Hour

Administrative Assistant $15.45-$26.78

Office Assistant $15.45-$21.63

Part-Time Receptionist $15.45-$17.51

Public Services Administrative Assistant and Office Assistant shall also receive

Section 8 Additional Benefits 2, 3, and 5 as hereinafter provided. 

except no benefits shall apply to part-time employees.

*Rate is Per Year

Part-Time Seasonal Splash Pad Operations Manager $8,197.83

*Rates are Per Hour

Part-Time Seasonal Crew Leader (2) $4.00 above minimum wage

Part-Time Seasonal Labor $2.00 above minimum wage

Part-Time Summer Labor $1.00 above minimum wage

Part-Time Summer Splash Pad Attendant $1.00 above minimum wage

Part-Time Seasonal Leaf Vac Labor $15.00

Engineering & Zoning Department: *Rates are Per Year

Director of Engineering & Zoning $132,714.74

City Engineer $66,950.00

*Rates are Per Hour

Engineering Technician $22.66-$41.20

Building & Zoning Inspector $22.66-$41.20

Adminstrative Assistant $15.45-$26.78

Office Assistant $15.45-$21.63

Director of Engineering & Zoning, City Engineer, Engineering Technician, Building &

Zoning Inspector, and Administrative Assistant shall also receive Section 8 

Additional Benefits 2, 3, and 5 as hereinafter provided, except no benefits shall 

apply to part-time employees.

Police Department: *Rate is Per Year

Additional annual compensation for Detectives $1,019.02

Page 2 Rev. 9/12/22



WAGE ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2023 Exhibit A

Year
DEPARTMENT 5/1/2022 - 4/30/2023

*Rates are Per Hour

Part-time Sworn Police Officer in Training $21.01

Part-time Sworn Police Officer (Solo Patrol) * Same hourly wage as FT sworn officer 

pursuat to FOP agreement compensation

schedule.

*Rates are Per Hour

Community Service Officer $25.65

Administrative Assistant (TIER 1) $28.18

Administrative Assistant (TIER 2) $15.45-$26.78

Public Safety Telecommunicator/Records Clerk $15.45-$26.78

Part-time Office Clerk $15.45-$17.51

Custodian $15.45-$17.51

Uniform Allowance for PT Sworn Police Officer and Community Service Officer

shall be pursuant to a Quarter Master System with the City directly paying for all 

such approved uniforms purchased with the maximum allowance per employee

set in the amount of:

    *Rate per Year $750.00

reduced by any uniform payments heretofore directly made to employee

this fiscal year, with a maximum $200.00 carry-over to the following year.

Uniform Allowance for the Administrative Assistant and Telecommunicator/Records 

Clerk shall be pursuant to a Quarter Master System with the City directly paying for

all such approval uniform purchases with the maximum allowance per employee 

set in the amount of:

*Rate per year $363.00

The aforesaid members of the Police Department shall also receive Section 8 

Additional Benefits 1, 2, 3, 4, (if hired prior to 05/01/13), and 5 as hereinafter

provided.  No benefits shall to part-time employees.

Crossing Guards: $23.45

No benefits shall apply to Crossing Guards.

Fire Department: *Rates are Per Year

Fire Chief $8,772.56

Page 3 Rev. 9/12/22



WAGE ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2023 Exhibit A

Year
DEPARTMENT 5/1/2022 - 4/30/2023

Fire Marshall

Safety Officer

Deputy Fire Chief $2,276.15

No other benefits shall be paid or allowed to the Fire Chief and Deputy

Fire Chief.

*Rates are Per Call

Paid On Call Firefighters  Certified $42.31

Paid On Call Firefighters  Non-Certified $32.31

*Rate is Per Hour

Special Event/Training/Detail Pay $16.08

Additional $15.00 per hour for any fire call that lasts more than two hours.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Paid on Call Firefighters shall be paid the

MABAS established rate for MABAS callouts, hazardous material spills, and

for statewide callouts by the Illinois Management Agency.

ESDA: *Rates are Per Month

Co-Director (Police) $207.45

Co-Director (Fire) $207.45

No other benefits shall be paid or allowed to the ESDA Co-Directors.

Recreation Department: *Rates are Per Year

Recreation Director/Special Events Coordinator $55,723.82

Recreation Manager $11,371.94

Recreation Director/Special Events Coordinator shall also receive Section 8 

Additional Benefits 2, 3 and 5 as hereinaftre provided, except no benefits

shall apply to part-time employees.

Information Technology Department *Rate is Per Year

Director of Information Technology $94,554.00

*Rates are Per Hour

Help Desk Technician with certifications $17.00-$25.00

Help Desk Technician without certifications $16.00-$27.00

Director of Information Technology and Help Desk Technicians shall also receive

Section 8 Additional Benefits 2, 3, and 5 as hereinafter provided, except no benefits 

Page 4 Rev. 9/12/22



WAGE ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2023 Exhibit A

Year
DEPARTMENT 5/1/2022 - 4/30/2023
shall apply to part-time employees.

Page 5 Rev. 9/12/22




	Agenda 091222
	MONDAY, SEPTEMBR 12, 2022
	MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS
	COMMITTEE REPORTS
	PROCLAMATIONS
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT


	Regular Meeting Minutes 082922
	PUBLIC COMMENT

	Special Meeting Minutes 090122
	Peru PD Report August 2022
	09.14.2022 Disbursements
	Summary
	Listing
	Payroll

	Loughran_PZ Minutes of Mtg on 8-31-22
	Loughran-Ord approving Petition for ReSubd & Waiver
	Food Trucks
	Resolution.Lamps 09.12.22
	9.12.22 Ord. Amend. Code - Legal Counsel
	Ordinance Approving Execution of Employment Agreement
	wage ordinance 5-1-22 amendment 9-12-22
	wage ordinance 5-1-22 exhibit A Rev 9-12-22
	Wages

	LP Homecoming Parade

